MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PAWNEE CITY, HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 9, 2025, AT 7:00 P.M. AT THE CORNERSTONE BUILDING, 601 G STREET, ALL IN PAWNEE CITY, PAWNEE COUNTY, NEBRASKA.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by advertising in the Pawnee Republican, a designated method for giving notice as shown by the Affidavit of Publishing on file in the office of the City Clerk. Notice of this meeting was given to the Mayor and City Council and a copy of their acknowledgment of receipt of the notice and the Agenda are on file in the office of the City Clerk. The availability of the agenda was communicated in advance and in the notice to the Mayor and Council of this meeting. All proceedings shown hereafter were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public.

Present: Mayor Charlie Hatfield, Council Members Vickie Zelenka, Susan Eisenhauer and Donnie Fisher; Tamela Curtis City Clerk/Treasurer and Kellie Wiers, Deputy City Clerk and Foreman Spencer Cumley. Absent: Council Member Pat Hatfield.

Mayor Charlie Hatfield called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. informing all those present of the Poster stating the Open Meeting Law Changes on the West meeting room wall, next to the storage closet, accessible to the public. At this time, all those present stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance. Council Member Zelenka moved to accept May 27, 2025, regular meeting minutes. Council Member Fisher seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried.

The Treasurer submitted the following claims for consideration: 6/3/25 Payroll: \$20,394.61; Union Bank & Trust, FWH 5419.74; NE Dept. of Rev, SWH 751.48; John Hancock, retirement 1410.76; Amazon Cap. Serv, rep parts/sup 873.40; Access Systems, photocopier contract 200.75; OPPD, elec at wells 341.45; NPPD, elec 2995.77; Binder Bros, lumber/concrete 1523.90; Coral's Cleaning Serv, cleaning office 120.00; Meyer Labs, paper towel disp 67.90; Surnali, drug testing 78.00; Midwest Lab, swr samp/labels 268.57; Uribe Refuse, pond port-a-potty 220.00; One Call Concepts, Digger Hotline Locates 19.60; Pawnee City Thriftway, sup/pool concessions 513.39; Stehlik Law, June atty fees 1,000.00; PCMH, CPR Cert for Lifeguard/Mgrs 150.00; Pawnee Co. Rural Water, water @ pond 45.00; Windstream, pool ph/city off int 176.31; Matt Kuhlmann, June zoning services 800.00; US Cellular, emerg cellphone 48.75; H & H Auto Parts, sup 11.49; Schendel Pest Control, swr plant 70.00; **3D Plumbing**, rep park urinal/parts/labor-pond restroom 3623.75; **Stallbaumer** Lumber, dr closures 249.98; HealthFirst RX, pool concessions 105.00; Lincoln Winwater Works, wtr parts/sales tax 1106.73; Maggie Evans, rmb pool oper cert 40.00; Martin Marietta, 10th Str Culvert Repairs 1027.98; NMC, Cat Jackhammer 8690.00; Casey's Business, equip fuel 169.37. Council Member Eisenhauer moved to approve the claims as submitted. Council Member Zelenka seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried.

Review May Treasurer's Report: Council reviewed the May 2025 Treasurer's report with no questions.

Sheriff Braden Lang: Sheriff Braden Lang stated he had checked out the camper on H Street and there is no activity going on that he has notices, so he does not believe anyone is living in the camper. Mayor Hatfield reported that the owners of the camper on G Street completely dismantled it, and the City Crew picked most of it up during the City-wide clean up. Sheriff Lang reported that the car sitting in front of Veronica Iverson's house belongs to Marcus Henninger, but it hasn't moved so he doesn't think that Mr. Henninger is living in the camper again behind Ms. Iverson's house. Sheriff Lang continued that he had done a little investigating about that camper behind the house, and it is still registered to Kara Lee's deceased father, which makes it a little more difficult to deal with. Council inquired if Sheriff Lang could just impound the camper? Sheriff Lang stated if it were a car he could impound it, but a camper is considered a residence by the State, so there's a whole other set of rules for dealing with it. City Attorney Jennifer Stehlik-Ladman stated she is working on a letter to be sent out this week to both Kara Lee and Veronica Iverson. Stehlik-Ladman also stated that Ms. Iverson will also need to notify Kara Lee with a letter stating she wants the camper removed from her property immediately. Sheriff Lang stated that the dog he had to pick up last week, which had been reported up at the ballfields, was a very aggressive dog, bending the catch pole he was using in half. Lang stated he appreciated the City Crew meeting him at the dog pound to assist him in getting the dog out of his vehicle and into the kennels. Sheriff Lang stated he had contacted the Lincoln Humane Society, and they stated they would take the dog, so Sheriff Lang plans to get it taken to Lincoln sometime this week. Sheriff Lang stated that earlier today his office received a call from Carl Nichols that a tan/white Pitbull mix dog had attached Carl's dog earlier today and when Mr. Nichols tried to separate them, the dog bit him. The Sheriff's office did not receive the call until 45 minutes after the bite incident had happened, so they have not been able to locate the dog as of yet. Deputy Wiers stated that she had let the Pool Manager on duty know that there could be a potentially aggressive dog wondering around town, so to be on the lookout for it to be wondering around up by the pool park. Deputy Justyce Stankowski is currently at Supervisor Training in Grand Island this week and will be going to K-9 Training in Texas next month. Foreman Cumley reported that the cameras have been put up at the truck parking lot on the County Shop building. More discussion followed with Sheriff Lang stating he did not need to be one of the recipients of the pictures unless there is an issue, then either Foreman Cumley or Council Member Eisenhauer can let him know and he will respond to it.

Public Hearing on Application for NEW Class "C" Liquor License (*Beer, Wine, Distilled Spirits, One & Off Sale*) for Willard Tavern Inc dba Old Guys Brew 103037: *Open Public Hearing:* Council Member Eisenhauer moved to open the Public Hearing for the Application for new Class "C" Liquor License (*Beer, Wine, Distilled Spirits, On & Off Sale*) for Willard Tavern Inc dba Old Guys Brew 103037. Council Member Fisher seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried, and public hearing opened at 7:15 p.m.. Chuck Rathbun, Heidi Koster & Keri Crosby were present to answer any questions. Mr. Rathbun stated that the Electrical Inspector had to be brought in before NPPD would turn on electricity since the electric service had been off for over a year. There are also a lot of inspections that will need to be done by the Health Department & State Patrol, which they are hoping to happen somewhere around the first part of July. When asked when their tentative opening date was. Ms. Koster stated they are hoping to be open sometime in August, but that all depends on how the inspections go and when they get their Class C Liquor License. *Close Public Hearing:* Council Member Eisenhauer moved to close the Public Hearing for the Application for

new Class "C" Liquor License for Willard Tavern Inc dba Old Guys Brew 103037. Council Member Zelenka seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried, and public hearing closed at 7:18 p.m. Council Member Eisenhauer moved to approve the Class C liquor license (Beer, Wine, Distilled Spirits, On & Off Sale) for Willard Tavern Inc dba Old Guys Brew 103037. Council Member Zelenka seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried.

Daycare Discussions: Josie Friedly met to extend an invitation to the Mayor and City Council Members to please attend a meeting on June 18th at 6 p.m. on Licensed Daycare discussions to be held at the Pawnee City School Lunchroom. Ms. Friedly stated she has been working on the daycare project for the past 12 days as Derek and Amanda Niss have announced that if they don't get "The Second Home" daycare sold, they will be closing it on December 31st, 2025. Friedly stated that she is working on forming a non-profit and has gotten a board put together. Friedly stated that they are looking for help with handling Payroll, taking care of the grounds and custodial duties. The Niss' are selling the Second Home Daycare for \$250,000, which to make it work out they need to fill the daycare with 43 kids. Friedly stated that the hardest part is finding funding to assist with keeping this daycare open as they do not have the cash flow itself to keep it going. They have been relying on grants to make ends meet. They have also had staffing issues. The newly formed 501-C3 Board called "PC Little Learners" is made up of nine members including Jess Colo, Madi Lang, Julia Smith, Dr. Abby Hanzlicek, Mary Moser, Emily Sisco, Kristen Bloss, Joni Hageman, and Josie Friedly. More discussion followed with Council Member Zelenka discussing the need for part-time and full-time employees as not everyone needs the same training program. Discussion was had on some employees needing to be certified, not being able to outsource licenses and finding an overall director of the facility. Ms. Friedly stated she would like to see Pawnee City Schools get involved and then they could offer 3 year old preschool at Pawnee City Schools as Lewiston has 3-year-old preschool and once people send their kids to Lewiston to go to preschool, they just stay going to Lewiston so we are losing students by not offering preschool for 3-year-olds. Pawnee City Schools census count is at 230 students with 300 students being the "sweet spot" to be at. Council Member Zelenka also inquired about working with Pawnee City School's Student Internship Programs where students could come do the buddy work system at the Daycare two to three days a week. More discussion followed with Ms. Friedly stating that they have filed for the non-profit status, but it could take up to six (6) months for them to obtain their Federal ID#. Council asked Ms. Friedly to keep the City Council updated on their progress.

Jessica Colo, Your Insurance Coach: Discuss updated Employee Health Insurance option of 70/30% Coinsurance and \$1500 Deductible with Medica National Network vs. McInnes Group's UHC plan-change renewal: Council discussed the updated Employee Health Insurance option of 70/30% Coinsurance and \$1500 Deductible with Medica National Network and the \$20,000/\$25,000 group term life, short-term disability, dental and vision policies Ms. Colo had provided. Council felt that the Medica Gold 70/30% Coinsurance health insurance plan was a much more comparable plan with the United Health Care plan the employees currently have with a lower deductible. Clerks Curtis and Wiers agreed that even though their premiums would be higher because of this being an age-based health plan, they felt that with the lower deductible and preventative drug benefit it was a worth going with. Council Member Eisenhauer moved to

approve going with the Medica Gold, \$1500/\$3000 Deductible, 70/30 Coinsurance Health Plan through Jessica Colo, Your Insurance Coach. Council Member Fisher seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried. Clerk Curtis stated that right now the City only pays \$6.39 per month per employee that carries health insurance and pays 80/20 to all other employees that covers group term life insurance, short & long term disability and AD&D. Ms. Colo stated that she would recommend that at this time the City just stay where they are at for those benefits, as they are being offered at a lower price than she can offer at this time. Clerk Curtis stated that the employees don't have a dental plan, but they do have a VSP vision plan with Ameritas and cancer/accident policies with AllState that the employees pay themselves through Olberding Insurance. Council stated that at this time they were not interested in changing the City's group term life or short-term disability coverage or adding the dental or vision plans. Ms. Colo stated she would work with the Clerks to get all the paperwork filled out to be turned into Medica this next week.

Jennifer Stehlik-Ladman, City Atty: Discuss latest updates on 522 & 526 G Street collapsed buildings, Pharmacy/Bank Insurance Updates & Asbestos Removal: City Atty Stehlik-Ladman stated that she has been talking with Union Bank's attorney and they are working with the company Brester's out of Lincoln in cleaning away the bricks and debris from their building so a structural engineer can come and determine if there was any further damage made from the collapse of the buildings. Mayor Hatfield stated that he has noticed that Mr. Raper has removed some of the bricks away from both the pharmacy and the bank. More discussion followed about the broken decorative light that Mr. Raper knocked over with his skidster. City Attorney Stehlik-Ladman stated that she could send a letter to Mr. Raper and his attorney letting them know the costs to replace the decorative light, as this was a separate issue than the collapsed buildings. Clerk Curtis stated they had received payment from the City's Insurance, less the \$1000 deductible. Deputy Clerk Curtis state that when she had talked with LARM they had acted like they were going to be sending Mr. Raper a letter, but we have never gotten a copy of anything they might have sent to them. City Attorney Stehlik-Ladman stated that the City should at least go after the \$1000 deductible from Mr. Raper. The Clerks will check back with LARM and see if they have sent any letters to Mr. Raper and will let Jennifer know what has been done. Mayor Hatfield stated he had obtained a very rough estimate of \$130,000 from Gyhra Construction on removal of the debris from a calculated guess on the number of cubic yards it will end up being. Randy Gyhra stated it could be substantially more if there are extra costs associated with asbestos. Mayor Hatfield stated that the name and phone number he had been given to call at DHHS was actually someone who had recently retired, so that explains why the gentleman's mailbox is full and he hasn't called the Mayor back. Mayor Hatfield stated he got another phone number for a new gal named Andrea at DHHS and she wasn't sure what to tell him about asbestos testing on a collapsed building. She planned to look into it and have the information to the Mayor by June 11th. Andrea had told Mayor Hatfield that a lot of communities in the State of Nebraska will be faced with these same problems, so it was an especially important question she needed to find the correct answer to. Discuss Nuisance Property Abatement Letters recommended by Health Board sent out: Council Member Eisenhauer stated that the Pawnee City Development Corporation (PCDC) plans to send out follow-up letters to some of the same property owners that Jennifer is sending abatement letters out to, plus Joyce Compton, which Clerk Curtis had previously discussed with her. City Attorney Stehlik-Ladman stated that she is finishing up the legal descriptions on the abatement letters and once she's proofed them they

should be sent out this week. Council Member Eisenhauer stated she will tell PCDC to hold up for a couple weeks before sending out their follow-up letters. Mayor Hatfield asked the Clerks to keep the nuisance properties and collapsed buildings on the meeting agendas. *Any follow up on asbestos removal at 1345 G Street:* Mayor Hatfield stated he had also talked to Dustin at DB Environment about the asbestos testing that he had done at 1345 G Street inquiring if it had been removed and Dustin had been back to check on it. Dustin stated that has not heard anything back from the property owner at 1345 G Street, but the next time he's in the area, he will check to see if the asbestos has been removed from that property.

Review Aaron Sawyer's May PC Economic Development Report: Council reviewed Aaron Sawyer's May ED Report. *Review email re: July 7th Nebraska Dept of Economic Development (NDeD) meeting in Pawnee City:* Mayor Hatfield stated that according to Aaron, NDeD moved the meeting on July 7th to another location, but when asked, Mr. Sawyer did not have any knowledge as to what town it was being moved to.

Review Special Designated Liquor License (SDL) Application from Pawnee County Fair Foundation. *Review/Approve Resolution #10 Pawnee Co Fair Foundation's request for SDL during Pawnee County Fair on July 16th-July 19th, 2025:* It was stated that this request would allow people to bring alcohol to the tractor pull, rodeo and other events being held at the fairgrounds. Council Member Eisenhauer moved to approve Resolution #10 approving the application for a Special Designated Liquor License from the Pawnee Co. Fair Foundation for the Pawnee County Fair on July 16th –19th, 2025. Council Member Zelenka seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all present voting in favor of the motion, whereupon motion carried.

Review article from Channel 10/11 on NE Community Foundation on Hometown Interns: Clerk Curtis stated that while she was home sick last week she found this article on Channel 10/11 News. She had forwarded the article to Mayor Hatfield and Council Member Eisenhauer and also sent it to Suzanne Borcher & Sherri Smith, PC Community Foundation and they are interested in working on this program together with the City. Suzanne stated that she would do some further research on the Hometown Intern Program and get back to the City on what the next steps would be.

A Report and update from Council Member Eisenhauer: *Pool Updates:* Council Member Eisenhauer stated they have scheduled their first Midnight Swim at the pool for June 28th charging \$8, which includes entry to the pool and the light meal. Pool Manager Mallory Branek is working on getting more businesses and people to help sponsor the Midnight Swims. Ms. Branek would like to post banners acknowledging sponsors who are supporting the midnight swim. All Council Members felt that would be a great idea so people can see who helped make these Midnight Swims possible. Eisenhauer reported that Water Aerobics have started and are being held Mon.-Fri. from 11 a.m. to noon and in the evenings from 7-8 p.m. Mon-Thurs. The water aerobics instructors/leaders have taken and passed their pool operator certification, so the City just has to provide one lifeguard on duty while they are doing their water aerobics. All three Managers and Assistant Managers have now passed their certified pool operator certification plus Council Member Eisenhauer has passed hers too so she can help out when needed for a few hours here and there up to the Pool. The Ball Association will be giving away \$20 gift certificates to be used for pool concessions only to anyone who sells \$50 or more in meat raffle

tickets for the Ball Association's main fundraising event. Council Member Eisenhauer stated that Pool Manager Branek has also started bi-monthly Skill Lifeguard Training. They held the first training last week pairing all of the lifeguards up and had them save each other, performing multiple different ways of saving each other. The Lifeguards then had to retrieve a 10# brick that had been dropped in the south end of the deep by diving into the water from the north side, swimming across the pool then down to retrieve the brick and swimming back across the pool to the north side carrying the brick on their chest. All guards met the criteria of performing that task in under 60 seconds. Eisenhauer reported that there have been some pool issues right at the beginning of the season with six kids banned from the pool for one week, with the banned timeframe ending yesterday. They tried to treat it as a lesson learned. Two of the situations could have been really bad and four of them had broken pool rules. Council Member Eisenhauer held a mandatory meeting yesterday for all pool employees and went over the rules and why we have the rules in place that we do. Park Updates: Council Member Eisenhauer stated that there is a new camera up at Van Horne Park. The cameras and data plans are being provided by Susan at no cost to the City. Eisenhauer reported that there was some vandalism at VanHorne park when someone drove a vehicle down in the bowl after it had rained and tore it up. The City Crew will be installing gates, much the same as the South entrance to the Fairview Golf Course/ Fairgrounds has. Eisenhauer stated that at VanHorne Park there was a roll of toilet paper still in the wrap that was put in the toilet, which she took care of that issue. She also put in a stacking shelf in the center room of that restroom so they can keep the extra toilet paper and paper towels off of the floor in that middle section. Foreman Cumley stated that the motion light detectors with a e-minute timers were put in the pond restrooms by Dave Pope today. *Review/Discuss* Letter from Co. Assessor; Notice of Valuation Changes on Cornerstone Building (now tax exempt), PCAL Park-north/south lots & empty lots in SW part of town (filing protest on these lots): Council Member Eisenhauer stated that the City has gotten notification from the County Assessor that many of the City's properties were raising in valuation, much the same as our own personal properties have. She felt the property that was the South 1/3 lots, which was part of the area that PCAL plans to turn into a park area, but since there has not been any development on that portion of the park, it has to be taxed. That land valuation went from \$1,325 up to \$4,410. The North 2/3rds of the Park area, where PCAL has started their walking trail/sitting area they raised the land valuation from \$3,530 up to \$11,760 but since it is now for public use, she plans to file the permissive exemption paperwork in December, which will eliminate the taxes for next year (2026) but this year the City will have to pay the taxes on it. Eisenhauer inquired if the Council was fine with the amount that both of those properties increased, especially the South part as there is nothing on it, so it is not open for public use. Council Member Fisher stated that since there has been nothing done to that South 1/3 of that property he doesn't feel like it should have increased that much. After much discussion it was decided to file a protest on the South 1/3 Lots asking for it to be changed to \$2,000. The other city-owned property that Council Member Eisenhauer plans to file a protest against are the two lots located in the Southwest part of town as that is nothing but waste ground, right off of turkey creek and also located in the floodplain. The valuation went up from \$3,720 to \$12,395. After much discussion, the Council decided to have Council Member Eisenhauer file the protest and ask for the valuation to remain at \$3,720.

A Report and update from Foreman Cumley: *Report on City-Wide Clean-up held June 2nd* (*photos included*): The City Crew hauled several loads of trash, totaling over 20,000 lbs. to Seneca Sanitation's Transfer Station in DuBois making it a highly successful City-wide clean-

up! Council Member Mayor Hatfield discussed the possibility of having a spring and fall citywide clean up as we went from picking up items from eight or so properties to picking up items from 36 properties in town. Mayor Hatfield stated he felt by putting it on the back of the water bill, putting up flyers around town and advertising for a couple weeks in the newspaper people were finally catching on that this is a wonderful service that the City is providing to clean up their properties at no cost to them. Mayor Hatfield stated that Deputy Clerk Wiers also made some phone calls to remind people that the Clean-up day was coming up and to get their name on the list if they had anything they wanted removed off of their properties. Clerk Curtis stated that many members of the Pride Committee worked on Veronica Iverson's property that is South of VanHorne Park and were able to put many items on the curb for the City Crew to pick up and it made a world of a difference on the appearance of her property. It also might not be very timeconsuming for our crew members if we could provide this service a couple times a year instead of just once. Foreman Cumley stated he was really happy to see people take advantage of this service the City provides. Foreman Cumley stated he agreed with Mayor Hatfield that it would be great to provide this service twice a year. Cumley continued that he would maybe like to have the City do the Spring City-wide Clean-up before June even though it's a really busy time of the year for the guys. Mayor Hatfield stated he agreed that it would be nice if it was done before Memorial Day Weekend as many people come back to Pawnee City for the Alumni Banquet, so the more properties we can have cleaned up before then, the better our town looks but he also understands how busy the Crew is trying to get the pool ready to open that same weekend. Council Member Zelenka suggested putting this back on the agenda next March so the Council can discuss it again at that time. *Street Project updates:* Evan Wickersham and Scott Hrabik with JEO Consulting Group met with Foreman Cumley to go over details on the Street Project last week. They talked about driveway approaches, tubes, roads, etc. As far as the whole street project goes all driveway tubes will be replaced with 20' double-walled plastic tubes with the tubes under the streets remaining steel. They asked if the City wanted approaches and Foreman Cumley said yes because he doesn't want the edge of the street breaking off prematurely. Intersections are going to be a normal sized 20' intersection with the exception of the intersection of 15th & E Street where they are going to try and widen that intersection because one of the property owners right there turns trailers in there and another property owner has a fifth-wheel camper they turn that corner with. There isn't much of a turn radius right now as the tubes just drop off so if they go with a normal sized intersection right there the tubes will be extended, and it will widen it up some. At 14th & E Street, they just have a flat gravel driveway, they are just going to do a 2' asphalt approach. At 15th & F at Highway 50, they are just going to mill that out and put it up flush with the concrete approach that's already there for the State. They plan to redefine all of the ditches. When they get down to the curve at 16th & E Street they are looking at two options because they wanted to keep the tube in that lower driveway, as even though there is not a house there anymore, the City uses that driveway to get the sewer jet trailer to a City sewer manhole but they have troubles with that whole ditch silting in. Cumley felt that most of that may go away with the new road but he asked Evan to look into tubing that stretches all the way around to the creek so they can quit going in there and have to clean it all out, but he will let them know. Aylers have elected to have a new driveway tube put in on their E Street drive and take out their 5' of concrete and go back with asphalt. Cumley stated that Branek's tube won't be replaced with the asphalt approach being tapered into their concrete driveway. On 17th Street JEO plans to pull a State Permit to do a concrete approach from the Highway. They all felt that would be a good idea because whenever the State goes through there and replaces

that highway, they are going to match what is already there. Everything is getting 6" of Asphalt with all of the ditches being redefined. Evan wanted Foreman Cumley to ask the Council if they wanted to include GeoTech Services for approximately \$4000. They will test soil compaction and do core drills after the streets are complete. Council was in agreement that they should include the services of GeoTech with the Street Project. *Review/Discuss updates on various projects in the City:* Foreman Cumley stated the City Crew has put the new jackhammer to good use as they have started working today on three water valves that were needing replaced. Foreman Cumley also stated he has it on their list to start removing the overgrown trees along the creek at VanHorne Park. The Handrails have been built and primed with the Crew needing to have Mayor Hatfield bring the core drilling and paint to the City so they can finish up on that project. The new summer part-time employee, Heath is working out really well as he is very motivated and is hoping to impress everyone as he would like to be added on full-time.

Correspondence: Council reviewed the thank you card from the Stehlik Family and an article from Channel 10/11 on NE Auditor exposing eight (8) local governments for financial misconduct. Mayor Hatfield stated that Julie Bauman will be here on Friday, June 27th for One-On-One Budget Workshops: with Tam/Spencer for Vickie (Water & Fire) at 9:00 a.m.; Susan (Pool & Parks) at 10:30 a.m.; Donnie (Streets) at 1:00 p.m.; Pat (Sewer) at 3:00 p.m. Council Member Zelenka moved to adjourn the meeting. Council Member Fisher seconded the motion. Roll Call vote indicated all in favor of the motion, whereupon meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m.

ATTEST: Tamela S. Curtis, City Clerk/Treasurer

Charlie Hatfield, Mayor